






























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































On December 5, 20 1 2, Enforcement requested documentation from the Employer 
detailing the Employer's complete full-time workforce. [A copy of the Business 
Establishment Compliances and Monitoring Report, dated 1 2/05/12, was entered 
into evidence as Hearing Exhibit 2.] 

In mid-December 20 1 2, Employer produced a Total Workforce Listing, which 
showed the Employer was employing 20 employees: 3 permanent residents and 1 7  
CWl workers. The Listing indicated that Employer was not in compliance with 3 
CMC § 4525. [Total Workforce Listing, dated 12/17/12, at Hearing Exhibit 3 .] 

On January 7, 20 1 3 ,  Enforcement served Employer with a Notice of Warning, 
stating that Employer was not in compliance with 3 CMC § 4525, and instructing 
Employer to contact Manny Iguel of the Department's Citizen Job Placement 
Section within 1 0  days of the issuance of the Notice. [A copy of the Notice of 
Warning was entered into evidence as Hearing Exhibit 4.] 

On January 23, 2013, Employer's bookk�eper, Jonabel Fabian, informed the 
Department that the Employer had hired three U.S. citizens and that the Employer 
would be submitting the names of the new workers to the Department. However, 
the Employer never submitted those names. [At Hearing, Ms. Fabian testified that 
she telephoned the Department once, but Manny Iguel was in a meeting. Fabian 
never again tried to telephone Mr. Iguel to provide him with the information.] 

In November 20 1 3 ,  Enforcement filed its Determination and requested $2,000 in 
sanctions against Employer for its failure (a) to meet the 30% in accordance with 3 
CMC § 4525; and (b) to cooperate with the Department to attempt to improve the 
percentage of Employer's work force who are U.S. citizens or permanent residents. 
[Determination at Hearing Exhibit 1 ;  testimony of Ben Castro.] 

At Hearing, the Employer produced a new "Total Workforce Listing" based on 
current information, updated to November 1 8, 20 13 .  [Total Workforce Listing, 
dated 1 1/12/1 3, was entered into evidence as Hearing Exhibit 5 .] The new Listing 
shows that the Employer currently employs 25 full-time workers, out of which 5 
workers are U.S.  citizens or permanent resident workers. This means that 
Employer is still not in compliance with the 30% requirement of3 CMC § 4525. 

At the conclusion of the Hearing , Enforcement moved for an order requiring 
Employer to cooperate with the Department to hire and employ U.S. citizens, U.S.  
permanent residents or CNMI permanent residents. One means o f  demonstrating 
cooperation is for Employer to post all job vacancies on the Department's website 
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(www.rnarianaslabor.net). The Enforcement representative also repeated that 
Enforcement believes the Employer should be sanctioned for failing to meet the 
applicable percentage and failing to cooperate with the Department during the past 
year. 

1 .  REMEDIAL ACTION TO BRING EMPLOYER INTO COMPLIANCE 

The Department's Regulations state that an employer must make a good faith 
effort to hire U.S. citizens, U.S. permanent residents or CNMI permanent residents. 
Regs. at § 80 - 30.3-440. To that end, Regulations require an employer to post job 
vacancy announcements at the Department's website (www.marianaslabor.net). 
Id. at § 80 - 30.3-205. 

This Employer has not posted any job vacancies on the Department website for 
at least the past year. [Testimony of Manager Xu.] Given that the Employer 
employs 20 CWl workers, each of whom will come up for renewal from time to 
time, the Employer should be posting its available jobs and renewals on the 
Department website in order to ensure that it is making a good faith effort to place 
U.S. citizens and permanent residents into all available jobs. 

In order to remedy this situation, the Hearing Officer shall order the following: (1)  
Employer shall be ordered to post all future job vacancies and job renewals on the 
Department website; and (2) Employer shall be ordered to attend a training session 
on the use of the job placement website at the Citizen Job Availability and Job 
Placement Section. Yvonne S. Taisacan shall conduct the training for Employer 
(Xu, Guo Qing and Jonabel Fabian) on November 26, 2013 at 2 :00 p.m. 

The above-noted orders are supported by 3 CMC § 4947(1 1 ), which authorizes a 
hearing officer to "impose such other sanction, order or relief as may reasonably 
give effect to Division 4, Title 3 [the "Employment and Registration" statutes]." 
Additionally, Department Regulations authorize a hearing officer to "impose such 
other sanction, order or relief as may reasonably give effect to the requirements of 
Commonwealth law." Regs. at § 80 - 50.4-820(n). 

2. SANCTIONS 

The Department's investigation was conducted under 3 CMC § 4527 [Chapter 2 of 
the Commonwealth Employment Act of2007, as amended by Public Law 1 7-1] .  
In cases of violations under that chapter, the hearing officer is authorized to levy a 
fine not to exceed $2,000. 3 CMC § 4528(£)(2). 
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Enforcement requested that the Employer be sanctioned $2,000 for its failure to 
comply with laws and regulations regarding its obligation to maintain a minimum 
of 30% ofit's workforce with U.S. citizens, U.S. permanent residents or CNMI 
permanent residents, pursuant to 3 CMC § 4525. [Determination at Hearing 
Exhibit 1; and Testimony of Ben Castro.] 

The above-cited statute and its implementing Regulations 3 do not specify 
standards upon which to assess applicable fines. Rather, the amount of fines in this 
area is left to the discretion of the Hearing Officer. This Hearing Officer applies ·a 
standard of reasonableness and fairness in assessing sanctions, in accordance with 
general principle stated in the Regulations, that: 

The hearing officer is authorized to . . .  [u]se the inherent powers ofa hearing 
officer . . .  to further the interests of justice and fairness in proceedings. Regs. 
at § 80 - 50.4-820(h) and (o). [Emphasis added.] 

The Regulations also state that"[u]pon motion and good cause shown, a hearing 
officer may make any order that justice requires to protect a party or person from 
annoyance, embarrassment, oppression, or undue burden or expense." Regs. at § 
50.4-550. [Emphasis added.] 

Applying the above standards to this case, this Hearing Officer concludes that the 
Employer should be fined, but the amount of the requested sanctions should be 
redl:lced to $500. 

The evidence-establishes that the Employer did respond to Enforcement's 
document request and Employer did hire several U.S. citizens during the past year. 
Nevertheless, the Employer's bookkeeper later failed to deliver infom1ation to the 
Department and, more importantly, the Employer ignored its obligation to post job 
vacancies on the Department's website. [Regs. at Section 30.3 - 205 .] 

The Employer's Manager, Xu, Gui Qing, made some effort to cooperate with 
Enforcement and this factor should mitigate against imposing the maximum fine. 
The Employer appears to have been ignorant of the Department' s  website or how 
to use it. The Manager did not realize there was a serious problem until the 
Department filed and served its Determination in November 2 0 1 3 .  

' See Employment Rules and Regulations (hereinafter, "Regulations"). See 32 Com. Reg. 30254 (May 
21 ,  2010). 
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Given these facts, the Hearing Officer finds that the appropriate sanction in this 
matter is five hundred dollars ($500). Further sanctions may be appliedifthe 
Employer (!)  fails to attend the orientation session at the Citizen Job Availability 
and Job Placement Section, or (2) fails to post its future job vacancies and renewals 
on the Department's website. 

Good cause having been shown, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

1 .  Attendance at Tutorial Session: Respondent Long Feng Corporation is 
ORDERED to attend a training session to be conducted by Yvonne S. Taisican at 
the Citizen Job Availability and Job Placement Section, on November 26, 2013,  at 
2:00 p.m. Xu, Gui Qing and Jona be! Fabian shall attend the training on behalf of 
the Respondent. 3 CMC § 4947(1 1). 

2. Posting on Website: Respondent Long Feng Corporation is ORDERED to 
post all job vacancies and job renewals on the Department of Labor website 
(www.marianaslabor.net), in accordance with Regulations at § 80 - 30.3-205. 

3. Sanction: For the reasons stated herein, Respondent Long Feng Corp. is 
hereby FINED five hundred dollars ($500). 3 CMC §§  4528(a) and (f)(2). 
Respondent is ORDERED to pay this fine no later than thirty (30) days after the 
date of service of this Order. Payment shall be made to the CNMI Treasury; and a 
copy of the payment receipt shall be delivered to the Hearing Office on or before 
the payment deadline. 

4. Added Sanction: If Respondent fails to comply with the terms of this 
Order, Respondent shaII be subject to further monetary sanctions in an amount to 
be determined at a later hearing. 

5 .  Appeal: Any person or party aggrieved by this Order may appeal, in 
writing; to the Secretary of Labor within fifteen (15) days of the date of issuance 
of this Order. 3 CMC §§ 4948(a) and 4528(g). 

DATED: November ".Z.I , 201 3  
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COMMONWEALTH OF THE NORTHERN MARIANA ISLANDS 
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICE 

In the Matter of: ) 
Depart�ent of Labor Enforcement Section, ) 

v. 

Korea Tourism, Inc., 
dba Korea Tours Bureau, 

Complainant, 

Respondent. 

) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

) 

CAC No. 1 3-0 19-12 

ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER 

This Compliance Agency Case came on for hearing on March 6, 2014; in the 
Administrative Hearing Office of the CNMI Department of Labor, located on 
Capitol Hill, Saipan. The Department's Enforcement Section was represented by 
investigator Frank Aguon; the Citizen Job Availability and Job Placement Section 
(hereinafter, "Citizen Job Placement Section") was represented by James Ulloa. 
Respondent Korea Tourism Inc., dba "Korea Tours Bureau" or "KTB," appeared 
through its Vice President, Lim, Hyung Joom, and its General Manager, Ms. Kim, 

.Hae Ja. Hearing Officer Jerry Cody, presiding. 

After hearing the testimony and reviewing the record, the Hearing Officer 
makes the following Findings .of Fact and Conclusions of Law: 

This case is based on a Determination and Notice of Violation ("Determination"), 
filed by the Department's Enforcement Section ("Enforcement") in the Hearing 
Office on December 1 9, 2013 .  [A copy of the Determination was entered into 
evidence as Hearing Exhibit l .] The Determination concerns the activities of 
respondent Korea Tourism, Inc. (hereinafter, "Employer"). 

Employer changed its management in January 2014. The current General Manager 
is Ms. Kim, Hae Ja, who assumed her position on January 2, 2014, pursuant to an 
Operations Management Partnership Agreement. [The Agreement was entered 
into evidence at Hearing Exhibit 3.] The former General Manager was Ms. Kim, 
Jee Yon Jeaung. Many of the events recited in the Determination took place in 
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2013,  when the former General Manager was in charge. The former General 
Manager did not attend the hearing. 

On January 1 5, 201 3, Enforcement conducted an on-site compliance inspection of 
Employer's business as part of its effort to ensure that employers are making good 
faith efforts to comply with the "30% U.S. workforce requirement" specified in 
Department regulations. This regulation mandates that a minimum of 30% of an 
employer's workforce should consist of U.S. citizens, U.S. permanent residents or 
CNMI permanent residents. [See Employment Rules and Regulations ("Regs.") at 
§§ 80-30.2-120(c) and 80-30.3-440; testimony of Prank Aguon and James Ulloa.] 

On January 1 5, 2013, Enforcement serve<} Employer with a document request, and 
shortly thereafter, Employer provided Enforcement with theTequested documents, 
including documents that listed Employer's total workforce. 

The documents showed that Employer had a workforce of 7 employees, consisting 
entirely ofCW-1 workers, working as tour guides. None of Employer's workforce 
were U.S. citizens, U.S. permanent residents orCNMI permanent residents. 
[Testimony of Mr. Ulloa and Ms. Kim.] 

On February 4, 2013, Enforcement served Employer with a "Notice of Warning," 
informing Employer that it was not in compliance with the "30% U.S. workforce 
requirement." [See Notice of Warning at Hearing Exhibit 5.] The Notice of 
Warning instructed the Employer to contact the Citizen Job Placement Section for 
assistance in (I)  obtaining referrals of U.S. citizen applicants or (2) making other 
arrangements to meet the 30% U.S. workforce requirement. Id. 

It is unknown whether Employer ever responded to the Notice of Warning and/or. 
contacted the Department between February and October 2013 . 1 It is clear, 
however, that Employer never registered at the Department's website and never 
posted any available jobs on the site. [Testimony of Mr. Ulloa.] 

In August and November 2013 ,  Employer advertised the above-noted positions on 
a local radio station. [Copies of two certifications from the KW AW-FM radio 
station were entered into evidence as Hearing Exhibit 7.] Job advertisements wen; 
announced on the radio on 7 consecutive days in August 2013  and 14 consecutive 

1 Neither the Department nor the Employer could testify as to whether any communication occurred 
between the parties. Employer's current General Manager was not working for Employer in 20 1 3  and 
Mr. Ulloa was not working at the Citizen Job Placement Section until October 2013. 
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days in November 2013. According to Employer, no U.S. citizens or permanent 
residents responded to these advertisements. 

In November 2013, the Citizen Job Placement Section made two unsuccessful 
attempts to contact Employer regarding the Notice of Warning. Employer's friend 
or agent, Gina Bacani, informed the Department that Employer's General Manager 
was off-island. [Testimony ofMr. Ulloa.] The Citizen Job Placement Section then 
referred the matter to Enforcement. 

Enforcement concluded that Employer had failed to make good faith efforts to 
recruit U.S. eligible workers and that Employer had been "uncooperative and non­
compliant" with the labor laws, rules and regulations with respect to recruiting 
U.S. workers and permanent residents. [Determination (Hearing Exhibit 1) at � 6.] 
The Determination set this case for Hearing; the Hearing was continued until 
March 2014 at the request of Employer. 

At Hearing, Employer's new General Manager, Kim, Hae Ja, testified that as of 
March 2014, Employer employs 6 persons, all of whom are CW-I workers. 

DISCUSSION 

Under Commonwealth law, every employer is required to make good faith efforts 
to recruit eligible U.S. workers and permanent residents in sufficient force to meet 
the targeted percentage of30% of its total workforce. Regs. at §§ 80-30.2-120(c) 
and 80-30.3-440. 

Among other things, Departmental Regulations require that "[a]n employer who 
intends to employ a foreign national worker . . .  on a full-time basis . . .  must post a job 
vacancy announcement on the Department's website, www.marianaslabor.net." Id. 
at § 80-30.3-205; see also § 80-30.3-300. "There are no waivers available with 
respect to the job vacancy announcement requirement." Id. at § 80-30.3-230. 

The Department recognizes that it may take some employers time and effort to 
achieve the goal of employing 30% of their workforce as U.S. citizens and/or 
permanent residents. Nevertheless, Employers who are not in compliance with the 
30% target are expected to cooperate with the Citizen Job Placement Section in 
order to demonstrate that they are making a good faith effort to meet the 
requirement. [Testimony of James Ulloa.] 
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In this case, Employer's tour guide positions may require fluency in the Korean 
language, as these guides deal directly with Korean tourist-clients of the Employer. 
[Testimony of Ms. Kim.] These positions may be difficult to fill with U.S. citizens 
or permanent residents, given the language requirement. Nevertheless, it is 
possible that there are local U.S. citizens or permanent residents who are bilingual 
in English and Korean and would be interested in working as guides. Employer 
should use the Citizen Job Placement Section as a resource to find such bilingual 
individuals and offer them employment. 

The Determination: 

In its Determination, Enforcement made two recommendations: (1) that. Employer 
be ordered to cooperate with the Citizen Job Placement Section, so that it could be 
brought into compliance with workforce objectives identified in CNMI statutes and 
regulations; and (2) that Employer be ordered to pay a $2,000 fine for its past non­
compliance with the workforce statutes and regulations. 

Citizen Job Placement Section: 

The evidence shows that Employer has not met the 30% requirement [Regs. at § 
80-30.2-120(c).] as it employs no U.S. citizens or permanentresfdents. To date, 
Employer has failed to register or post vacancies on the Department's website to 
find employees. Evidently, Employer was unaware of the Department's 
Regulation requiring employers to register and post available jobs on the website. 

Despite the difficulty in finding bilingual employees, Employer has a continuing 
obligation to cooperate with the Department by (1) posting all available job 
openings on the Department's website; and (2) hiring all qualified U.S. citizens 
and permanent residents for available jobs. Employer shall be ordered (see below) 
to register and post all future job vacancies and renewals ofCW-1 positions on the 
website. 

Finally, Departmental Regulations provide that if no qualified U.S. citizen, U.S. 
permanent resident or CNMI permanent resident is identified through posting on 
the website, referral by the Department, or good faith efforts to hire, the 
Department shall issue a certification of compliance to the Employer. Regs. at § 
80-30.3-460. In other words, if an employer takes all the above-noted steps to find 
qualified citizens and/or permanent residents and still cannot find them, the 
Department will not consider the employer in violation of the CNMI workplace 
Regulations. 
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Sanctions: 

The Hearing Officer is authorized to levy a fine of up to $2,000 for each violation 
of the Commonwealth Employment Act of 2007. 3 CMC § 4528(f)(2). 
The amount of fines in this area is left to the discretion of the Hearing Officer. 

The standard in determining appropriate sanctions should be one of reasonableness 
and fairness, in accordance with general principle, stated in the Regulations, that 
"[t]he hearing officer is authorized to . . .  [u]se the inherent powers of a hearing 
officer . . .  to further the interests of justice and fairness in proceedings." Regs. at § 
80-50.4-820(h) and (o). 

In this case, after hearing the testimony of the Employer, Enforcement withdrew its 
request for a monetary sanction. [Testimony of Mr. Aguon.] The Hearing Officer 
agrees that no useful purpose would be served by sanctioning this employer, 
particularly given that it is under new management. Nevertheless, Employer is 
warned that any failure on its part to comply with the terms of this Order, as 
specified below, could subject the company to sanctions in the future. 

Good cause having been shown, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

1 .  Corrective Action: Respondent Korean Tourism Inc. is ORDERED to post 
all future job vacancies and job renewals on the Department of Labor website 
(www.marianaslabor.net), in accordance with Regulations at § 80-30.3-205. 
Respondent shall consider all referrals received from the Citizen Job Placement 
Section and hire such referrals when they are qualified and available to work. 

2. Warning: The obligations described above are continuing obligations. If 
Respondent Korean Tourism Inc. fails to comply with the terms of this Order (for 
example: fails to post job vacancies, fails to interview all referred applicants or to 
notify the Department regarding the referrals, etc.), it shall be subject to monetary 
sanctions in an amount to be determined after a due process hearing. 

3 .  Appeal: Any person or party aggrieved by this Order may appeal, in 
writing, to the Secretary of Labor within fifteen (15) days of the date of issuance 
of this Order. 3 CMC §§ 4948(a) and 4528(g). 

DATED: March_3:_, 2014 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF THE NORTHERN 1\-IARIANA ISLANDS 
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICE 

In the Matter of: ) 
Department of Labor Enforcement Section, ) 

) 

CAC No. 1 3 -02 1- 1 2  

Complainant, ) ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER 

) 
v. ) 

) 
Himawari Saipan Inc., dba Himawari, ) 

) 
Respondent. ) 

This Compliance Agency Case came on for hearing on February 25, 2 0 14, in the 
Administrative Hearing Office of the CNMI Department of Labor, located on 
Capitol Hill, Saipan. The Department's Enforcement Section was represented by 
investigator Frank Aguon; the Citizen Job Availability and Job Placement Section 
(hereinafter, "Citizen Job Placement Section") was represented by James Ulloa. 
Respondent Himawari Saipan Inc. appeared through its Vice President, Tatsuhito 
Suzuki, and its accountant, Anita Comista. Hearing Officer Jerry Cody, presiding. 

After hearing the testimony and reviewing the record, the Hearing Officer 
makes the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law: 

This case is based on a Determination and Notice ofViolation ("Determination"), 
filed by the Department's Enforcement Section ("Enforcement") in the Hearing 
Office on December 19,  2 0 1 3 .  [A copy of the Determination was entered into 
evidence as Hearing Exhibit l .] The Determination concerns the activities of 
respondent Himawari Saipan Inc. (hereinafter, "Employer"). 

Enforcement conducts on-site compliance inspection of businesses in the CNMI 
in order to ensure that employers are making good faith efforts to comply with the 
so-called "30% U.S. workforce requirement" specified in Department regulations. 
This regulation mandates that a minimum of 30% of an employer's  workforce 
should consist of U.S. citizens, U.S. permanent residents or CNMI permanent 
residents. [Employment Rules and Regulations ("Regs.") at § § 80-30.2-1 20( c) and 
80-30.3-440; testimony o f  Frank Aguon and James Ulloa.] 
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On October 10, 2012, Enforcement conducted an on-site compliance inspection of 
Employer's business and served Employer with a docmnent request, entitled the 
"Business Establishment Compliances and Monitoring Report." [ Determination at 
f l ;  testimony of Mr. Aguon.] 

Employer failed to produce the requested docmnents for the next eight months. 
Therefore, on August 9, 2013, Enforcement served Employer with a "Final Notice 
of Warning," noting that Employer was not responding to the Department's 
document request. 

On August 1 9, 2013, Employer provided Enforcement with all of the requested 
documents, including documents that listed Employer's total workforce. The 
documents showed that Employer had a workforce of 41  employees, consisting of 
34 CW-I  workers and 7 citizens and/or permanent residents (including one FSM 
worker). [See document entitled "Listings ofHimawari Employees," entered into 
evidence as Hearing Exhibit 2; testimony of Messrs. Ulloa, Aguon and Suzuki.] 

On August 28, 20 13, Enforcement served Employer with a "Notice of Warning," 
(Hearing Exhibit 3), informing Employer that it was not in compliance with CNMI 
labor regulations specifying that a minimum of 30% of an employer's workforce 
should consist of U.S. citizens, U.S. permanent residents or CNMI permanent 
residents . .  [Regs. at §§  80-30.2-120(c) and 80-30.3-440.] The Notice of Warning 
instructed the Employer to contact the Citizen Job Placement Section for assistance 
in (1)  obtaining referrals of U.S. citizen applicants or (2) making other arrange­
ments to meet the 30% U.S. workforce requirement. Id. 

Over the next several months, the Citizen Job Placement Section, through Yvonne 
Taisacan, contacted Employer and attempted to work with Mr. Suzuki to refer U.S. 
citizen or permanent resident job applicants to Himawari. [Ms. Taisacan reported 
her efforts to her superior, James Ulloa. Later, she prepared a written summary of 
her efforts in a Memorandum, dated 12/1 1113 .  The Memorandum was entered into 
evidence as Hearing Exhibit 4.] 

On November 6, 2013, Ms. Taisacan referred four U.S. citizenjob seekers to the 
Employer. [See a copy of referral letter, dated l0/24/13, at Hearing Exhibit 6.J 
Employer was instructed to interview the workers, then provide a written account 
to the Department regarding its hiring decisions. The letter stated: "Please take 
necessary actions(s) on these referral(s). You have fourteen ( 14) days to submit 
and report to the Director all actions taken. Failure to do so may result into a 
violation that will be addressed at the Departments' Administrative Hearing . . . .  " Id. 
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Employer never submitted a written report to the Citizen Job Placement Section, as 
required, even after being reminded of the 14-day deadline by Ms. Taisacan on 
December 2, 2013.  At Hearing, Employer testified that three of the four job 
applicants had been interviewed; the fourth could not be reached by phone. The 
Employer hired one of those three applicants; the other two were found to have 
insufficient skills. 

In December 20 13, the Citizen Job Placement Section notified Enforcement that 
four job applicants had been referred, but Employer had failed to provide follow­
up information, such as whether each applicant had been hired and, if not, the 
reason for rejecting them. Given Employer's failure to provide follow-up 
information, the Citizen Job Placement Section concluded that Employer had failed 
to make good faith efforts to recruit U.S. eligible workers. [Memorandum at 
Hearing Exhibit 4.] 

Enforcement examined the matter and issued its Determination, concluding that 
Employer had been "uncooperative and non-compliant" with the labor laws, rules 
and regulations with respect to recruiting eligible U.S . workers and permanent 
residents. [Determination (Hearing Exhibit 1 )  at if 7.] This Hearing followed. 

After Employer received the Department's Determination in mid-December 20 13, 
i t  hired a number of U.S. citizens. [Testimony of Mr. Suzuki.] Employer's current 
Total Workforce Listing shows that Employer now employs 46 full-time 
employees: 34 foreign national (CW- 1) workers and 1 2  U.S. citizens and/or 
permanent residents (6 U.S. citizens, 5 permanent residents and 1 FSM worker). 
[See Employer' s  current "Total Workforce Listing" at Exhibit 7 (by stipulation, 
Employer submitted the Listing post-hearing, on 2/27/20 1 4).] 

DISCUSSION 

Under Commonwealth law, every employer is required to make good faith efforts 
to recruit eligible U.S. workers and permanent residents in sufficient force to meet 
the targeted percentage of30% of its total workforce. 3 CMC § 4525(a) and Regs. 
at §§ 80-30.2-1 20(c) and 80-30.3-440. 

Among other things, Departmental Regulations require that "[a]n employer who 
intends to employ a foreign national worker . . .  on a full-time basis . . .  must post a job 
vacancy announcement on the Department's website, www.marianaslabor.net." Id. 
at § 80-30.3-205; see also § 80-30.3-300. "There are no waivers available with 
respect to the job vacancy announcement requirement." Id. at § 80-30.3-230. 
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The Department recognizes that it may take some employers time and effort to 
achieve the goal of employing 30% of their workforce as U.S. citizens and/or 
permanent residents. Nevertheless, Employers who are not in compliance with the 
30% target are expected to cooperate with the Citizen Job Placement Section in 
order to demonstrate that they are making a good faith effort to hire U.S. citizens, 
U.S. permanent residents and CNMI permanent residents. [Testimony of James 
Ulloa.] 

The Determination: 

In its Determination, Enforcement made two recommendations: ( 1 )  that Employer 
be ordered to cooperate with the Citizen Job Placement Section, so that it ·could be 
brought into compliance with workforce obj ectives identified in CNMI statutes and 
regulations; and (2) that Employer be ordered to pay a $2,000 fine for its past non­
compliance with the workforce statutes and regulations. 

Citizen Job Placement Section: 

Employer presented evidence (Hearing Ex. 7) to prove that it has now met the 30% 
threshold identified in the Department's Regulations. [Regs. at § 80-30.2-120(c).] 
Given that Employer is now in compliance with the regulation, there is no present 
need to order Employer to meet with the Citizen Job Placement Section. 
Nevertheless, the Hearing Officer notes that Employer has a continuing obligation 
to cooperate with the Department in the future by (1)  posting all available job 
openings; and (2) hiring all qualified U.S. citizens and permanent residents for 
available jobs. 

Sanctions: Enforcement' s  examination of Employer's workforce was part of a 
Departmental investigation conducted under Chapter 2 of the Commonwealth 
Employment Act of2007, as amended by Public Law 1 7- 1 .  3 CMC § 4527. In 
cases of violations under that chapter, the Hearing Officer is authorized to levy a 
fine of up to $2,000 for each violation. 3 CMC § 4528(f)(2). 

The amount of fines in this area is left to the discretion of the Hearing Officer. The 
standard in determining appropriate sanctions should be one of reasonableness and 
fairness, in accordance with general principle, stated in the Regulations, that "[t]he 
hearing officer is authorized to . . .  [u]se the inherent powers of a hearing officer. . .  to 
further the interests of justice and fairness in proceedings." Regs. at § 80- 50.4-
820(h) and (o). 
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In this case, Enforcement argues that Employer should be fined for its conduct that 
led to the filing of the Determination. Although Employer hired citizens to bring 
itself into compliance afi.er the Determination was issued, its prior Workforce 
Listing (Hearing Ex. 2) shows that for many months Employer did not employ a 
sufficient number of U.S. citizens and/or permanent residents. During this period, 
Employer did not use the Department's website in order to find job applicants . [Id. 
at §§ 80- 30.3-205 and 30.3-300.] Also, in this period, Employer failed to produce 
documents requested by the Department, which would have shown that it 
employed insufficient numbers of U.S. citizens and permanent residents. Even 
after Employer received its Notice of Warning (Hearing Ex. 3), it was slow to react 
to the Department's efforts to refer workers. The Employer also failed to file an 
Employer Declaration, specifying its reasons for rejecting certain applicants after 
interviewing them. [Id. at § 80-30.3-450.] 

Based on the evidence presented, the Hearing Officer finds that Employer should 
be sanctioned with a monetary sanction of one thousand dollars. However, as 
Employer has now brought itself into compliance with the 30% ratio, one half of 
the sanction shall be suspended for one year and then automatically extinguished, 
on the condition that Employer complies with Departmental regulations during the 
one-year period. 

Good cause having been shown, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

1 .  Sanctions: Respondent Himawari Saipan Inc. is FINED one thousand 
dollars ($ 1 ,000) for its failure to comply with Departmental regulations with 
respect to making good faith efforts to hire U.S. citizens, U.S. permanent residents 
and CNMI permanent residents, as described above. 3 CMC §§ 4528(f)(2) and 
4947(1 1). However, half of the sanction ($500) shall be SUSPENDED for one 
year, and then automatically extinguished, provided that Respondent complies Vvith 
the terms stated below in paragraph no. 2. Respondent is ORDERED to pay the 
remaining $500 portion of the fine within thirty (30) days after the date of service 
of this Order. Payment shall be made to the CNMI Treasury; and a copy of the 
payment receipt shall be delivered to the Hearing Office on or before the payment 
deadline. 

2. Posting on Website: Respondent Himawari Saipan Inc. is ORDERED to 
post all future job vacancies and job renewals on the Department of Labor website 
(www.marianaslabor.net), in accordance with Regulations at § 80--30.3-205. 
Respondent shall consider all referrals received from the Citizen Job Placement 
Section and hire such referrals when they are qualified and available to work. 

5 

COMMONWEALTH REGISTER VOLUME 41 NUMBER as JUNE 28, 2Dl9 PAGE 042675 



3 .  Warning: The obligations described above are continuing obligations. If 
Respondent fails to comply with the terms of this Order (for example: fails to post 
job openings; fails to interview all referred applicants and notify the Department 
regarding the referrals, etc.), it shall be subject to a further monetary sanctions, 
including but not limited to the reinstatement of the suspended $500 portion of the 
fine, after a due process hearing on this issue. 

4. Appeal: Any person or party aggrieved by this Order may appeal, in 
writing, to the Secretary of Labor within f1fteen (15) days of the date of issuance 
of this Order. 3 CMC §§ 4948(a) and 4528(g). 

DATED: March _3_. 2014 �Cody � 
Hearing Officer 
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COMMONWEALTH OF THE NORTHERN MARIANA ISLANDS 
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICE 

In the Matter of: ) 
Department of Labor Enforcement Section, ) 

v. 

Juan A. Gacayan, 
dba JAG Construction, 

Complainant, ) 

Respondent. 

) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CAC No. 13-023-12 

ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER 

This Compliance Agency Case came on for hearing on January 22, 2014, at 9:30 
a.m. in the Administrative Hearing Office of the CNMI Department of Labor, 
located on Capitol Hill, Saipan. The Department's Enforcement Section was 
represented by investigator Jeff Camacho; the Citizen Job Availability and Job 
Placement Section (hereinafter, "Citizen Job Placement Section") was represented 
by James Ulloa. Respondent Juan A. Gacayan (dba JAG Construction) appeared 
together with translator Jimmy Blancia. Hearing Officer Jerry Cody, presiding. 

After hearing the testimony and reviewing the record, the Hearing Officer 
makes the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law: 

This case is based on a Determination and Notice of Hearing ("Determination"), 
filed by the Department's Enforcement Section ("Enforcement") in the Hearing 
Office on January 7, 2014. [A copy of the Determination was entered into 
evidence as Hearing Exhibit l.] 

Enforcement conducts on-site compliance inspection of businesses in the CNMI in 
order to ensure that employers are in compliance with the 30% requirement of3 
CMC § 4525, which mandates that a minimum of 30% of Employer's workforce 
should consist of U.S. citizens, U.S. pennanent residents or CNMI permanent 
residents. [Testimony of Jeff Camacho and James Ulloa.] 

On December 1 6, 2013, Employer filed a request for good standing from the 
CNMI Department of Labor. Employer provided a list of his total workforce to the 
Citizen Job Placement Section in support of his request. [A copy of the so-called 
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"Total Workforce Listing" was entered into evidence as Hearing Exhibit 2.] This 
document listed that Employer employed eight part-time employees, none of 
whom were U.S. citizens, U.S. permanent residents or CNMI permanent residents. 

On December 19, 2013, James Ulloa of the Citizen Job Placement Section met 
with Employer. Mr. Ulloa advised the Employer that he needed to hire two U.S. 
citizens or permanent residents, or at least submit a "workforce plan" to hire such 
persons, in order to come into compliance with CNMI law [3 CMC § 4525], and in 
order to obtain the letter of good standing. At that point, Employer stated that he 
was unable to hire additional workers and that he would withdraw his attempt to 
obtain a letter of good standing. [Testimony of Mr. Ulloa and Mr. Gacayan.] 

Subsequently, Enforcement concluded that Employer was not making any attempt 
to meet its obligations to comply with the 30% requirement of 3 CMC § 4525. 
Accordingly, Enforcement filed this Determination for such non-compliance. 
Enforcement requested that Employer be sanctioned $2,000 for his conduct in 
making no effort to comply with the 30% requirement of3 CMC § 4525. 

At Hearing, Employer testified that his business, JAG Construction, builds and 
repairs houses. He holds licenses in building construction and commercial 
cleaning services. Under questioning, Employer admitted that his Total Workforce 
Listing, which he had signed under penalty of perjury, was incorrect. The 
document listed that he employed 8 part-time workers. In fact, Mr. Gacayan 
testified that he employs five full-time CW workers (two masons, one carpenter, 
and two commercial cleaners) and three part-time CW workers (all commercial 
cleaners). [Testimony ofMr. Gacayan.] 

When asked why his Total Workforce Listing (Hearing Ex. 2) had failed to note 
any full-time workers, Employer blamed his accountant for incorrectly preparing 
the form. Id. 

As to his efforts to find U.S. citizens for the positions held by his "CW" workers, 
Employer noted that he had placed an advertisement on a local radio station for a 
total of three days in May 20 13. Hearing Exhibit 4 Oetter from Program Director 
of KWA W-FM to U.S. Citizen and Immigration Services ("USCIS") , dated 
5/09/13 ). 1 Employer testified that his petition to hire five full-time CW workers 
was approved by USCIS in October 2013. [Testimony of Mr. Gacayan.] 

1 The letter (Hearing Exhibit 4), entitled "Job Vacancy Announcement Certification," certifies that JAG 
Construction placed a job vacancy for 4 carpenters, 4 masons, 6 commercial cleaners and one electrician, 
and that the matter was announced on the radio for 3 consecutive days from May 6, 2013 to May 8, 2013. 
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DISCUSSION 

Under Commonwealth law, every employer is required to make good faith efforts 
to recruit eligible U.S. workers and permanent residents in sufficient force to meet 
the targeted percentage of30% of its total workforce. :3 CMC § 4525(a) and Regs. 
at § 80-30.3-440. 

Among other things, Department Regulations require that "[a]n employer who 
intends to employ a foreign national worker . . .  on a full-time basis . . .  must post a job 
vacancy announcement on the Department's website, www.marianaslabor.net." Id. 
at § 80-30.3-205; see also § 80-30.3-300. "There are no waivers available with 
respect to the job vacancy announcement requirement." Id. at § 80-30.3-230. 

The Department recognizes that it may take some employers time and effort to 
achieve the goal of employing 30% of their workforce as U.S. citizens and/or 
permanent residents. Nevertheless, Employers who are not in compliance with the 
30% target are expected to cooperate with the Citizen Job Placement Section in 
order to demonstrate that they are making a good faith effort to hire U.S. citizens, 
U.S. permanent residents and CNMI permanent residents. [Testimony of James 
Ulloa.] 

An employer who fails to cooperate with the Citizen Job Placement Section, after 
it is requested to do so, creates the impression that it is ignoring or evading its legal 
responsibilities under CNMI law. 3 CMC § 4525(a) and Regs. at § 80-30.3-440. 

In this case, the Hearing Officer finds that Employer failed to operate in good faith 
with respect to its obligation to hire and employ U.S. citizens and permanent 
residents sufficient to meet the 30% requirement. Id. As stated above, Employer 
met with the Placement Section in an effort to obtain a letter of good standing. 
However, when he was told that the Department expected him to take steps to hire 
U.S. citizens by receiving and interviewing job applicants referred by the 
Department, he immediately sought to withdraw his request for a good standing 
letter and made no attempt at further communication with the Department. 
[Testimony of Messrs. Ulloa and Gacayan.] 

After the meeting with the Citizen Job Placement Section in mid-December 2013, 
Employer failed to contact the Placement Section for further referrals of job 
applicants. Moreover, Employer never posted his available construction and 
commercial cleaning jobs on the Department's website in 2013 ,  as required by 
CNMI Department of Labor Regulations. Id. ; Regs. at § 80-30.3-205. 
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The above findings raise two issues: sanctions and corrective act.ion. 

Sanctions: Enforcement asked in its Determination that Employer be assessed the 
maximum fine of $2,000 for its conduct. [Testimony of Jeff Camacho.] 

Enforcement's examination of Employer's workforce was part of a Departmental 
investigation conducted under Chapter 2 of the Commonwealth Employment Act 
of 2007, as amended by Public Law 1 7- 1 .  3 CMC § 4527. In cases of violations 
under that chapter, the Hearing Officer is authorized to levy a fine not to exceed 
$2,000 for each violation. 3 CMC § 4528(£)(2). 

The amount of fines in this area is left to the discretion of the Hearing Officer. The 
standard in determining appropriate sanctions should be one of reasonableness and 
fairness, in accordance with general principle, stated in the Regulations, that "[t]he 
hearing officer is authorized to . . .  [ u ]se the inherent powers of a hearing officer . . . to 
further the interests of justice and fairness in proceedings." Regs. at § 80- 50.4-
820(h) and (o). [Emphasis added.] 

Applying the above standards to the facts of this case leads this Hearing Officer to 
conclude that a monetary sanction of $1,000, together with corrective action, is the 
appropriate sanction to be assessed against this Employer. 

Corrective Action: This Employer shall be ordered: (1)  to post all of its future job 
vacancies on the Department's website (www.marianaslabor.net); and (2) to meet 
with the Citizen Job Placement Section to discuss long-range workforce plans to 
meet the 30% target. 

Good cause having been shown, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

1 .  Sanctions: Respondent Juan J. Gacayan is FINED one thousand dollars 
($1 ,000) for his conduct in 20 13,  as described above. 3 CMC §§ 4528(±)(2) and 
4947( 1 1  ).  Respondent is ORDERED to pay this fine in two monthly installments 
of $500 each, due on or before March 21. 2014 and April 21. 2014, respectively. 
Payments shall be made to the CNMI Treasury; and a payment receipt shall be 
delivered to the Hearing Office on or before each payment deadline. 

2. Cooperation with Citizen Joh Placement Section: Respondent Juan J. 
Gacayan is ORDERED to contact James Ulloa of the Citizen Job Availability and 
Job Placement Section, within thirty (30) days of the date of this Order. The 
purpose of the contact shall be to cooperate with the Department to devise a 
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workforce plan to move towards meeting the so-called 30% requirement of 3 CMC 
§ 4525(a). 3 CMC § 4947(1 1). To this end, respondent shall consider all referrals 
received from the Citizen Job Placement Section and hire such referrals when they 
are qualified and available to work. 

3. Posting on Website: Respondent is ORDERED to post all job vacancies 
and renewals in the future on the Department website (www.marianaslabor.net), in 
accordance with Regulations at § 80 - 30.3-205. 

4. Further Sanctions: If Respondent fails to comply with the terms of this 
Order, he shall be subject to further monetary sanctions in an amount to be 
determined at a later hearing. 

5.  Appeal: Any person or party aggrieved by this Order may appeal, in 
writing, to the Secretary of Labor within fifteen (15) days of the date of issuance 
of this Order. 3 CMC §§ 4948(a) and 4528(g). 

DATED: January .11._, 2014 
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